
Civic Centre, Windmill Street, Gravesend Kent DA12 1AU 

                     
 
 

 
 

South Thames Gateway 
Building Control Joint 

Committee 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
Members of the South Thames Gateway Building Control Joint Committee are summoned to 
attend a meeting to be held at the Civic Centre, Gravesend, Kent on Wednesday, 23 March 2011 
at 10.30 am when the business specified in the following agenda is proposed to be transacted. 
 
 

 
S Kilkie 
Assistant Director (Communities) 
 
 
Please note the meeting will take place in the Kent Room. 
 

 
 

Agenda 
 

Part A 
Items likely to be considered in Public 

1. Apologies for absence   

2. To sign the Minutes of the previous meeting  (Pages 1 - 2) 

3. To declare any interest members may have in the items contained on this 
agenda.   When declaring an interest a member must state what their 
interest is.  

 

4. To consider whether any items in Part A of the agenda should be 
considered in private or any items in Part B in public  

 

5. Monitoring - Reorganisation (report herewith)  (Pages 3 - 10) 

 To consider the proposed changes to the organisational structure.  
 

 

6. Annual Audit & Inspection Letter  (report herewith)  (Pages 11 - 16) 

Public Document Pack



 To consider the Annual Audit and Inspection Letter  
 

 

7. Any other business which by reason of special circumstances the 
Chairman is of the opinion should be considered as a matter of urgency.  

 

8. Exclusion   

 To move, if required, that pursuant to Section 100A (4) of the Local 
Government Act 1972 that the public be excluded from any items 
included in Part B of the agenda because it is likely in view of the nature 
of business to be transacted that if members of the public are present 
during those items, there would be disclosure to them of exempt 
information as defined in Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act. 
  
 

 

 Part B 
Items likely to be considered in Private 

 

9. Monitoring Report - October 2010 to February 2011 (report herewith)  (Pages 17 - 30) 

 To consider the current forecasts for the 2010/11 financial year and  
progress of the objectives of the Business Plan 2010/11  
 

 

 
 
 
Members 
 
Cllr Michael Snelling (Chairman) (Gravesham Borough Council) 
Councillor Jane Chitty (Vice-Chairman) (Medway Council) 
 
Councillors: Gerry Lewin (Swale Borough Council) 

 
 
Substitutes: Matt Bright (Medway Council) 

William Dyke (Gravesham Borough Council) 
John Morris (Swale Borough Council) 

  
 
 
 
 



 

1 

South Thames Gateway Building Control Joint Committee 
 

Thursday, 20 January 2011                  10.00am 
 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Michael Snelling (Chairman) 
 
Cllrs: Councillor Jane Chitty (Vice-Chairman) 

Gerry Lewin 
 

Note:  Cllr William Dyke was also in attendance 
 
Tony Van Veghel Director, South Thames Gateway Building Control Partnership 
Janine Boughton South Thames Gateway Building Control Partnership 
Paula Charker Medway Council 
Kevin Woolmer Medway Council 
Sarah Kilkie Gravesham Borough Council 
Julie Gibbs Gravesham borough Council 
Sue Hill Gravesham borough Council 
  
  
 
 
18. Apologies  
 
Apologies for absence were received from Stephen Gaimster (Medway Council) and James 
Freeman together with Cllr John Morris (both from Swale Borough Council). 
 
19. Minutes  
 
The Minutes of the meeting held on 23 September 2010 were signed by the Chairman. 
 
20. Declarations of Interest  
 
No declarations of interest were made. 
 
21. Schedule of Meetings for 2011/2012  
 

Resolved that subject to the outcome of the forthcoming local Council elections in May 
2011 and any consequential change in membership of the Joint Committee, the dates 
shown below be agreed:- 
 

Thursday, 9 June 2011 
Thursday,15 September 2011 
Thursday, 8 December 2011 
Thursday, 22 March 2012 

 
 
 

Agenda Item 2Page 1



South Thames Gateway Building Control Joint Committee 20.01.2011 

2 

22. South Thames Gateway Building Control Business Plan 2011/14  
 
Tony Van Veghel Director of the Partnership introduced the revised draft of the three year 
Business Plan which had been circulated to all participants in the Partnership.  He reminded 
those present that any revision to the original had to be agreed by each of the authorities 
before being adopted. 
 
A number of points within the Plan were highlighted including the fact that the 2011/12 
budget figures had been amended to reflect early retirement payments of £59,000 being 
advanced to the 2010/11 financial year.  
 
Members noted how the Partnership planned to improve its performance in the Quality and 
Performance Matrix for Building Regulations Functions by a further nine points and how 
structured organisational change and workforce development would allow the Partnership to 
move ahead with the development of its consultancy arm and thus improve its fee earning 
capacity. 
 

Resolved that the 7th draft of the South Thames Gateway Building Control 
Partnership Business Plan for 2011/14, including the amendments to the financial 
contributions from the partner authorities, be agreed. 

 
Note: The draft plan will be presented to each partner authority’s Cabinet for approval prior 

to its formal adoption at the Annual Meeting of the Joint Committee in June 2011. 
 
23. Financial Update  
 
Kevin Woolmer circulated a summary sheet which showed that each authority would be 
required to contribute a proportionate share of early retirement payments (£59,000) 
advanced from 2011/12, these contributions being in addition to the proportionate share of 
the forecast deficit for 2010/11 (£84,000).  He explained that these early retirements would 
result in annual savings of more than £53,000 per annum thereafter.   
 
Members noted that over the three year period of the business plan each authority’s 
contribution to the partnership would be reduced by 27.18 %. 

 
Resolved that the financial update be noted. 

 
Note: The Partner authorities have to be apprised of any changes in the financial situation.  
 
24. Staff  
 

Resolved that staff of the STGB be commended for the way in which they had 
reacted to difficult trading conditions and how significant their achievement was. 

 
 
 Close of meeting  
 
The meeting ended at 10.46 am. 
 
 

Page 2



SOUTH THAMES GATEWAY BUILDING CONTROL           
 JOINT COMMITTEE 

 
23 March 2011 

 
Reorganisation 

 
 

Report from: Tony Van Veghel, Director, South Thames Gateway 
Building Control Partnership 

 
 

Summary  
 
This report advises of the changes to the staffing structure which reflect the early 
retirements of one managing surveyor and one building surveyor.  Three 
operational groups will be formed focused on work type rather than geographical 
areas. 
 

 

 
1. Budget and Policy Framework 
 
1.1 The Joint Committee needs to be advised of changes to the staffing structure 

which may affect service delivery. 
 

2. Background 
 
2.1 Contained in the 2011/14 Business Plan are details of changes required to work 

force planning over the next 3 years to take account of a reduction in staffing 
numbers.  This process has been accelerated to the 1st April 2011 due to the 
early retirements of two staff which were necessary to meet the cost reductions 
following the comprehensive spending review. 

 
3. Executive Summary 

 
3.1 The Business Plan 2011/14 contains details of changes to working practices 

necessary to take account of required cost reductions and changes to staffing 
levels.  These changes have now been accelerated due to the financial 
constraints placed on each authority.  

 
3.2 The proposed changes reflect a move away from the traditional model of each 

surveyor carrying out all of the functions within a geographical area.  The new 
arrangement considers three teams based on plan vetting, site inspection and 
consultancy/public protection services.   

 
3.3 Staff and HR have been consulted and a number of workshops have identified 

working arrangements and team make-up. 

Agenda Item 5Page 3



3.4 With such an unpredictable economic situation it is possible that the income 
from building regulation applications may not meet the predicted budget 
position.  Therefore, alternative income streams via the consultancy and the 
regularisation of unauthorised works have been identified together with 
reductions in operating costs from supplies and services, support services and 
transport. 

 
3.5 A further reduction in staff would seriously impact on the partnership’s ability to 

deliver services in both the fee earning and non-fee earning elements of the 
partnership. The potential for health and safety risks to constituents is 
discussed and the potential for a large volume of refunds, under the new 
charges legislation is also identified as a risk. 

 
4. Director’s comments 

 
4.1 Within the 2011/14 Business Plan are details of changes required to workforce 

planning over the next three years, to take account of a reduction in staff 
numbers and changes to the way services are delivered. 

 
4.2 This was based on one and latterly two members of staff retiring in year 3.  

However, in order to facilitate a reduction in costs in earlier years, both these 
members of staff have elected to leave via the early retirement route.  In order 
to accommodate this reduction in personnel and the loss of one managing 
surveyor and one experienced area surveyor, we have had to accelerate our 
programme of change in the way we deliver services. 

 
4.3 Therefore a number of imperatives have come together at this time to prompt 

us to re-examine our service and structure.  Our business plan has already 
looked at introducing change over a 3 year period to achieve the cost savings 
necessary for each partner authority.  Comments have come back from each 
organisation, through the consultation period, looking for an accelerated move 
to savings, with potentially greater savings to be made in the future and looking 
for greater transparency and value for money in the services we provide. 

 
4.4 The table in Appendix 1 relates to a SWOT analysis of where we are currently. 
 
4.5 Management team have met to discuss various models that we could 

incorporate to take into account the comments from each authority and to 
address the economic situation over the next few years.   

 
4.6 We could of course stay as we are with three teams and either a new managing 

surveyor or the operations manager taking over area 1.  But this is not 
delivering the aspirations of the partner authorities and neither is it achieving 
the performance levels with which we are assessed. 

 
4.7 We also looked at moving to two area teams, merging the existing area 1 with 

some of area 2 and adjusting the geographical boundaries to accommodate two 
teams delivering a similar service to what we have now.  This of course hits the 
same problems and would be no better address the principles alluded to earlier. 

 
4.8 We have to radically change our service model to reflect the income streams 

that fund our operation.  We need to demonstrate how we achieve self-funding 

Page 4



in each area and focus our resources so as to maximise our service delivery 
whilst reducing our cost base.  It is evident that the economic situation will not 
improve over the next few years and levels of contributions will be reduced. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

4.9 The above diagram shows the model that we will be pursuing.  It involves 3 
operational teams, one led by the Operations Manager and the other two by 
Managing Surveyors with the support team integrated within each function.   

 
4.10 Surveyors will be allocated to a team for a period of months and would 

concentrate on delivering that function, however, given our limited resources 
and the fact that we need to be customer orientated there will need to be a high 
degree of flexibility between the teams so as to move resources where they are 
required.   

 
4.11 Team members will then be rotated between functions at times to be agreed so 

as to gain experience in each area of service we deliver.  The make up and 
personnel attributed to each team has been agreed following consultation with 
staff and the detail of how the model operates is being designed through 
consultation and workshops with staff.   

 
4.12 This is not dissimilar to the way many corporate approved inspectors function 

but it also reflects the way local authorities have often concentrated their work 
when resources diminish.  The benefits to us are that we can concentrate our 
resource where there is the greatest demand.   

 
4.13 The economic situation dictates that we should use the best available model to 

improve service delivery whilst maintaining a balanced budget.  
 

5. Staffing implications 
 

5.1 By 1 April 2011 we will have reduced our staffing level by 27% from the original 
transfers of 37 staff on 1 October 2007 to a total of 27 posts.  There are a 
number of part-time positions within the group and the FTE of these 27 posts is 
23.5 FTE’s. Given the number of projects deposited annually and the fee 
income received, the DSA work/establishment ratio based on the DSA level of 
service document would require a calculated establishment of 30 FTE’s to 
deliver the required level of service.  

 
5.2 In order to facilitate the reduction on staffing so far we have reduced from five 

areas down to four and then to three most recently this has enabled the 
reduction of two management posts and by April 2011 we will have reduced a 
further management post. 

Page 5



 
5.3 We have been able to provide a good level of service by diversifying the roles of 

staff and sharing some duties usually carried out by professional staff to be 
carried out by technical staff instead.  We will be looking to extend this practice 
in the new working model so as to create a technical assistant hub which will be 
able to both support and deliver services in the three business areas of plan 
checking, inspection and consultancy/public protection. 

 
5.4 Of great concern would be any further unplanned reductions in staffing levels 

and the impact this would have on us meeting the partner authorities’ statutory 
obligations.  The public protection duties for which the council’s pay their 
contributions are covered by statue in the Building Act 1984 and cover the 
services we provide in dealing with dangerous structures, demolitions, 
unauthorised works and disabled person applications.  Further more the work 
we carry out within the fee-earning account is carried out under Section 95 of 
the Building Act which places a duty on each local authority to enforce the 
building regulations.  Any further depletion in staffing levels would result in 
lengthened delays in attending emergencies, and the inability to carry out 
required inspections of demolitions, which could affect the local environment.  
There would be reduced service levels in dealing with both unauthorised works 
and the required inspections on applications under the new charges legislation 
inspection framework. 

 
5.5 If we are unable to deliver the level of inspections required by the framework, 

important health and safety requirements will not be inspected and may result in 
substandard and possible dangerous forms of construction on site.  Not only will 
this significantly increase the risk for constituents of the three authorities but 
could result in claims being levied at the Council’s for substandard work 
completed on site, which should have been addressed through the normal 
building control process.  This may result in the creation of life threatening 
situations in particular in the areas of structure, fire risk, means of escape, 
venting of toxic fumes, contamination on site, electrical supply, hazards from 
falling and fenestration. 

 
5.6 Additionally if we are unable to deliver the inspection regime which customers 

have paid for, the new charges legislation requires us to make a refund of the 
difference in actual cost compared to the fee that was paid on submission.  
These refunds would significantly reduce building control income at the end of 
the year. 

 
5.7 The new arrangements will allow us to focus expertise in the area of demand.  

Although there may be some diminution of service in individual surveyors not 
being available to take phone calls or person calls at specific times, the design 
will allow for the continuation of a duty surveyor service which has proved a 
great success with customers.  There will be a greater use of technology to 
deliver an improved remote service and develop a self-service platform for 
customer enquiries, progress of applications and property searches. 

 
5.8 Whilst the economic situation has not improved in the construction industry over 

the last year we are beginning to see improvements in the levels of enquiry into 
the consultancy.  Should contracts be secured regarding house condition 
surveys, display energy certificates for public buildings etc, a potential income 

Page 6



of around £50k could materialise for next years.  As the consultancy develops 
and the economy improves further consideration will be presented to members 
regarding its potential legal standing as a local authority company. 

 
5.9 A new structure chart is attached in Appendix 2. 

Page 7



Appendix 1 
 

 
SWOT Analysis – current position 
 
 
Strengths 
 

Weaknesses 

• First class responsive service to request for 
visits. 

• Increased partners year on year 
• Duty surveyor arrangements welcomed by 

customers and agents 
• Developed a consultancy to use  and 

develop skills of staff in order to mitigate 
budget pressures and compete effectively 

• Recognised partner with education and 
training through work experience and 
schools seminars 

• Recognised as innovative in trying to reduce 
costs and generate additional income 

• Provision of first class seminars 
• Wealth of local knowledge 

• Inability to meet plan check 
performance target in either 10 or 15 
working days 

• Applications not being dealt with 
within statutory time period 

• Lack of consistency in plan checking 
• Lack of consistency in site inspection 

records 
• Completion certificates not being sent 

out within 5 working days 
• Inability to meet performance target 

on validation of plans 
• Staffing levels cut by 20% but income 

dropped by 30% over same period 
• Output dropped per FTE  
• Poor communication  
• IT issues 
 

 
Opportunities 

 
Threats 
 

• Reorganisation to make all services self-
financing 

• Train and develop staff to provide a high 
quality service and take on new roles in the 
consultancy 

• Reduce costs for premises and transport 
• Improve the consistency of both plan 

checking and site inspections 
• Improve performance targets and ensure 

they are met 

• Greater competition from AI’s 
• Shrinking construction market 
• Review of The Future of Building 

Control 
• Staff demographics 
• Cutting contributions  
• Lack of council support 
• Inadequate IT to deliver the service 

and improvements 
 

 
 

Page 8



STG BUILDING CONTROL PARTNERSHIP STRUCTURE CHART  - April 2011     Appendix 2 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

SBS = Senior Building Control Surveyor 

BCS = Building Control Surveyor 

TM = Technical Manager 

TA = Technical Assistant 

P/T = Part Time 

 = Plan Checking Team 

 = Inspection Team 

  
 = Consultancy / Public Protection 

 

Director 

Head of Administration & 
Business Development 

Operations 
Manager 

Managing 
Surveyor 

Managing 
Surveyor 

SBS 
(P/T) 

BCS BCS SBS SBS SBS BCS BCS SBS BCS BCS 
(P/T) 

TM TA TA TA 
(P/T) 

TA 
(P/T) 

TA 
(P/T) 

TA TA TA 
(P/T) 

 

 

 

P
age 9



Page 10

This page is intentionally left blank



SOUTH THAMES GATEWAY BUILDING CONTROL           
JOINT COMMITTEE 

 
23 MARCH 2011 

 
SOUTH THAMES GATEWAY BUILDING CONTROL 

ANNUAL AUDIT AND INSPECTION LETTER  
 

Report from: Mick Hayward, S151 officer to the Joint Committee 
 
 
Summary 
 
The report presents the Annual Audit and Inspection Letter (2009/2010) as 
submitted by PKF, the appointed auditor to the Joint Committee. 
 
 
 
1. Budget and Policy Framework 
 
1.1 The Memorandum of Agreement requires that an auditor appointed by 

the Audit Commission shall audit the accounts of the Partnership. 
 

1.2 The June 2010 meeting of the Joint Committee approved the 
2009/2010 Statement of Accounts. 

 
1.3 The auditor is required to review the Statement of Accounts and report 

back to the Joint Committee on its findings and, where appropriate, 
require the Joint Committee to prepare an appropriate response and 
management action plan.  

 
2. Audit and Inspection Letter (Appendix 1) 
 
2.1 The letter confirms that  

• the annual return was in accordance with Audit Commission 
requirements  

• no errors were identified 
• all relevant legislation and regulatory requirements were met 

 
2.2 Two matters arising are identified 

• Year end financial reporting requirements are currently under 
Government review, further details / implications will be reported 
to the Joint Committee in due course 

• An internal certification of the application fee payable, as laid out 
in financial procedures, was not evident on a number of 
samples. There was no evidence that this resulted in any 

Agenda Item 6Page 11



incorrect fees being levied and all fees where subsequently 
received 

 
2.3 The Joint Committee is now required to submit a letter of 

representation to the auditor, a draft of which is attached at Appendix 
2, before the final audit sign-off can occur. 

 
3. Financial Implications and Legal Implications 
 
3.1 There are no direct financial implications arising from this report.  
 
4. Recommendations 

 
4.1 The Joint Committee is asked to note the Annual Audit and Inspection 

Letter and approve the letter of representation as submitted. 
 
5. Suggested Reasons for Decisions 
 
5.1 The Joint Committee has a key role in monitoring the performance of 

the Partnership and the annual audit and inspection letter summarises 
the Audit Commission’s assessment of the Partnership. 

 
Lead officer contact 
 
Mick Hayward, S151 Officer, South Thames Gateway Building Control 
Partnership, Compass Centre, Chatham Maritime, Kent, ME4 4YH 
Tel: 01634 332220 
 
Background papers 
 
Report to STG Building Control Joint Committee – 3 June 2010. 

Page 12



 
 

Our ref:  

28 February 2011 

Dear Members 
 
Limited assurance audit of South Thames Gateway Joint Committee 2009/10 
 
We have completed our limited assurance audit of the South Thames Gateway Joint Committee (‘the 
Committee’) for the 2009/10 financial year and confirm: 
 
• the information contained in the annual return is in accordance with the Audit Commission’s 

requirements 
 
• no errors were identified by our work though management has now prepared the financial 

information previously reviewed by Members in a slightly different format to fully comply with the 
Audit Commission’s guidance  

 
• no matters have come to our attention to indicate relevant legislation and regulatory requirements 

have not been met. 
 
A small amount of work remains outstanding to complete our audit, the completion of the letter of 
representation by the Chief Finance Officer.   
 
There are two matters arising from our audit to draw to your attention, as shown below. 
 
Accounts and Audit regulations 2003 and future format of the annual return 
 
The Government commenced a six-week consultation on 24 January 2011 about the ‘Revision and 
Consolidation of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2003’.  The Joint Committee will need to consider 
the outcome of any amendments made to the regulations in deciding the future format of its annual return 
and accounts, particularly as the Government proposes the financial threshold defining smaller entities is 
raised from annual expenditure of £1 million to £6.5 million. This means organisations such as the Joint 
Committee may choose to complete an annual financial return and have the external audit completed 
under the limited assurance regime. 
 

Members of South Thames Gateway Joint Committee 
c/o Gravesham Borough Council, 
Civic Centre, 
Windmill Street,  
Gravesend, 
Kent. 
DA121AU 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Tel  020 7065 0000  |  Fax  020 7065 0650 

www.pkf.co.uk 

PKF (UK) LLP  |  Farringdon Place  |  20 Farringdon Road  |  London  |  EC1M 3AP  |  DX 479 London/Chancery Lane 

 
PKF (UK) LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales with registered number OC310487. 
 
A list of members’ names is open to inspection at Farringdon Place, 20 Farringdon Road, London EC1M 3AP, the principal place of business and registered 
office. PKF (UK) LLP is authorised and regulated by the Financial Services Authority for investment business activities. PKF (UK) LLP is a member firm of PKF International 
Limited, a network of legally independent member firms. 

 
 
 
 

Page 13



In the event the suggested amendments to the Regulations are not made, the Committee should prepare 
more detailed financial statements in accordance with recommended practice. In turn, we will need to 
complete a ‘full’ audit in accordance with the Audit Commission’s Code of Audit Practice. We will continue 
to liaise with officers on this matter. 
 
Compliance with financial operating procedures 
 
The Committee’s financial operating procedures require that the fees levied for building control 
inspections are authorised by two nominated officers. From a sample of 20, we found three fees were 
authorised by only one signatory. We confirmed the fee was subsequently received by the Committee in 
all three cases. 
 
An action plan has been prepared for the attention of officers and is included at Appendix 2. 
 
 
We would like to thank officers for their assistance in completing the audit. 
 
Yours sincerely 
 
 
 
 
Robert Grant 
Partner  
for and on behalf of PKF (UK) LLP 
London, UK 

Page 14



Appendix 1  Action Plan 

Matter arising Recommendations Priority Management response Responsibility Timing 

Accounts and Audit regulations 2003 and future format of the annual return 

The Government commenced a six-
week consultation on 24 January 
2011 about the ‘Revision and 
Consolidation of the Accounts and 
Audit Regulations 2003’.  This means 
organisations such as the Joint 
Committee may choose to complete 
an annual financial return and have 
the external audit completed under 
the limited assurance regime. 
In the event the suggested 
amendments to the Regulations are 
not made, the Committee should 
prepare more detailed financial 
statements and we will need to 
complete a ‘full’ audit in accordance 
with the Audit Commission’s Code of 
Audit Practice. 

The Joint Committee will need to 
consider the outcome of any 
amendments made to the regulations 
in deciding the future format of its 
annual return and accounts, 
particularly as the Government 
proposes the financial threshold 
defining smaller entities is raised from 
annual expenditure of £1 million to 
£6.5 million. 

Low Agreed. Format for 2010/2011 
accounts will be in accordance 
with regulations 

Chief Financial 
Officer 

June 2011 

Compliance with financial operating procedures 

The Committee’s financial operating 
procedures require that fees levied  
for building control inspection are 
authorised by two nominated officers. 
From a sample of 20, we found three 
cases where fees levied  were 
authorised by only one signatory. We 
confirmed the fee was subsequently 
received by the Committee in all 
three cases. 

The Committee’s financial operating 
procedures should be fully followed. 

Medium Agreed. Counter signatory of 
fees levied will be maintained 

Director STG March 2011 

 
 

P
age 15



Appendix 2  Letter of Representation 
 
Draft letter of representation 
 
PKF (UK) LLP 
Farringdon Place 
20 Farringdon Road 
London 
EC1M 3AP 
 
23 March 2011 
 
Dear Sirs 
 
Annual return of South Thames Gateway Joint Committee for the year ended 31 March 2010 
 
1 Representations of the Chief Finance Officer 

I confirm to the best of my knowledge and belief, and having made appropriate enquiries of other 
officers and Members, the following representations given to you in connection with your audit of the 
Annual Return. 
 

2 Responsibility for the Annual Return 
I acknowledge as the Chief Finance Officer and S151 Officer my responsibilities for the Annual 
return. 
 

3 Completeness of information 
All the accounting records have been made available to you for the purpose of your audit and all the 
transactions undertaken by the Joint Committee have been properly reflected and recorded in the 
accounting records.  All other records and related information have been made available to you. 
 

4 Internal control 
I acknowledge my responsibility for the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control 
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Annual Return that are free from misstatement, 
whether arising from fraud or error. 
 

5 Compliance with law and regulations 
I am not aware of any possible or actual instances of non-compliance with laws or regulations which 
are central to the Joint Committee’s ability to carry on business or which would otherwise have a 
potentially material effect on the Annual Return. 
 

6 Uncorrected misstatements 
You have not brought to my attention any uncorrected misstatements in the Annual Return.   
 

7 Subsequent events  
There have been no events since the balance sheet date which necessitate revision of the figures 
included in the Annual report.   

 
Yours faithfully 
 
 
 
Mick Hayward 
Chief Finance Officer 

Page 16



Agenda Item 9Page 17

Document is Restricted



Page 30

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 To sign the Minutes of the previous meeting
	5 Monitoring - Reorganisation (report herewith)
	6 Annual Audit & Inspection Letter  (report herewith)
	Appendix

	9 Monitoring Report - October 2010 to February 2011 (report herewith)

